
For the hearing impaired, a sign language interpreter can be provided with 48 hrs notice prior to 
the meeting.  Please call 541-766-6928 or the Oregon Communications Relay Service at 7-1-1 to 
arrange for TTY services.  A large print agenda can be available by calling 541-766-6928. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Library Advisory Board Meeting 

A G E N D A  

 6:00 pm - All Boards Potluck 

 7:30 pm - Call to Order 

 Introductions 

 Community Comments 

 Mark Shepard – Discuss Library Director Recruitment 

 Brainstorming Questions for Library Director Candidates 

 Approval of September 7, 2016 Board Minutes 

 Library Advisory Board Packet Questions & Comments 

 Old Business:  ▪ Review Circulation Policy 
                          ▪ Discuss Children’s Material Fines 

 Director’s Report 

 Division Manager Reports 

 Board Reports 
 Friends of the Library Board 
 Foundation Board 

 Information Sharing 

 Adjournment 

 

Documents for Meeting 
 Library Advisory Board Minutes – September 7, 2016 
 Library Advisory Board Report – September 2016 
 Revised Circulation Policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wednesday 
October 5, 2016 

 
 
 

6:00 pm 
Main Meeting Room 

 
 
 

7:30 pm 
Board Room 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES 
September 7, 2016 

 
Board Present 

 

Katherine Bremser, Chair 
Jennifer Alexander 
Karen Clevering 
Eric Dickey  
Scott Elmshaeuser  
Paula Krane 
Cheryl Maze  
Jacque Schreck 
Anne Schuster 
Steve Stephenson, Vice-Chair 
 
Absent/Excused: 
Mike Beilstein 
Diane Cygan 
 

Staff Present 
 

Carolyn Rawles, Library Director 
Andrew Cherbas, Deputy Director 
Rachel Denue, Senior Administrative Specialist 
Shaun Hearn, Circulation Supervisor 
Mary Nevin, Extensions Supervisor 
Felicia Uhden, Deputy Director 
 
 
 
 
 
Visitors:  
 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

Agenda Item Information Only Action 

Call to Order 7:30 pm  

Community Comments X  

Mark Shepard – Discuss Library Director 
Recruitment 

 Next meeting. 

Minutes: August 3, 2016  Approved. 

Library Advisory Board Packet X  

Director’s Report X  

Division Manager Reports X  

Board Reports 
Friends of the Library Board 
Foundation Board 

 
X 
X 

 

Review Circulation Policy 
Discuss Children’s Material Fines 

X  

Information Sharing X  

Adjournment 9:00 pm  
 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair, Katherine Bremser at 7:30 pm.  Went around the room with 
introductions. 
 

II. COMMUNITY COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

III. LIBRARY DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT – MARK SHEPARD 
 
Carolyn reported that Mark Shepard will be attending the October meeting.  The Library Director 
recruitment is a pretty involved process.  Carolyn stated that Human Resources, Mark and herself will 



Library Advisory Board 
September 7, 2016 

Page 2 of 5 

 

be discussing the recruitment to figure out the details.  The Board can provide their feedback on what 
they think the best practice would be.  The City hasn’t advertised it yet, so it could be several months 
yet before the process is complete.  Jacque Schreck stated that the last community meet and greet was 
good as you can see how people relate to the candidate, etc.  Carolyn commented that she is very 
excited for her retirement, but she is sad to leave at the same time.  Steve Stephenson voiced his 
concern about the shortage of Library staff and the work load the current staff will have to take on over 
the next several months.  Anne Schuster and Jacque both voiced how important the Library is to the 
community.  Jacque stated that she will not be able to attend the next meeting and asked the Board to 
voice the concern about merging with another department and to have the community come and see 
the finalists all in same day at the same time.  Jennifer Alexander asked if it is possible to have a heads 
up on what Mark plans to share with the Board at the next meeting and what he is seeking from the 
candidates.  It would be helpful to the Board to know this, so they can bring their thoughts to the 
meeting.  Jacque added that if Mark is just sharing the plan, then maybe the Board can ask what he 
wants from us. 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Motion:  Jacque moved to approve the August 3, 2016 meeting minutes.  Seconded by Scott 
Elmshaeuser and the motion carried.  
 

V. LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS & COMMENTS  
 
Paula Krane thanked staff for their work on the Strategic Plan.  It is nice and well put together. 
 
Steve asked who the next Council representative might be.  Carolyn replied that she isn’t sure, but it 
won’t happen until next January. 
 
Katherine asked if we are still pursuing a security guard for the Library.  Carolyn replied that they are 
still researching it and are still interested, but it depends on several things.  Anne is helping to possibly 
get a mental health worker to be located at the Library.  She thinks that COG has some Medicaid 
dollars that could go towards this.  Anne added that they are matching funds, so the Library would have 
to match half of the costs for that.  Carolyn stated that she feels the Library needs both a mental health 
worker as well as a security guard. 
 
Katherine asked if anyone attended the Rainbow art unveiling.  Felicia Uhden, Carolyn and Katherine 
all attended.  Eric Dickey stated that there was some great press covering the event.  Katherine added 
that she wasn’t sure about this project at first, but it did bring great press.  Paula stated that she 
volunteers in the lobby area in the mornings and the Monday after the unveiling, there were several 
people coming in looking and talking about the art.  Carolyn reported that for insurance purposes, she 
asked the artist the value of the piece he donated and he stated that he values it at over $35,000.  
 
Anne stated that our County Visioning is being conducted by Sean McGuire; maybe he can come talk 
about that at the next Board meeting when Mark is here.  She asked if the Board could add that to the 
next agenda.  Carolyn replied that yes, that would be great.  Carolyn will add him to the agenda to 
speak right before Mark does.  Steve asked what the time frame is for the development of the plan.  
Anne replied that there is no hard timeframe, they are taking as much time as needed.  McGuire is just 
gathering a lot of varied information right now.  Jacque stated that the Foundation meets in October and 
they could add him to their agenda as well if he would like.  Steve added that maybe this is an activity 
that might be useful for the new Library Director to be involved with, but that depends on the timeframe 
the recruitment.  Anne stated that she wants Mark to hear the value of the Library.  Paula asked if the 
October is going to be the potluck before the meeting again this year with all three of the Boards.  
Carolyn suggested having the gentleman speak at the potluck in October, which will be all three Boards 
and Library staff. 
 
 



Library Advisory Board 
September 7, 2016 

Page 3 of 5 

 

VI. DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 
Carolyn reported that she believes that the Library has a good candidate for the Supervising Librarian 
position.  Carolyn has spoken with her, but she still has to get her background check done.   
 
The Strategic Plan will go to City Council on October 3.  Mark is running it by Council leadership for 
their comments and approval.   
 
Carolyn commented that the Sustainability Coalition worked hard on the Rainbow art unveiling event.   
 
At the moment, the lovely Lamprey bench is in front of the DVD area, but they are working on finding a 
better place for it.  They will be planning opening for that as well.  There will be another bench that will 
be going in front of the quilts in the lobby, in memory of Lois Fenker.   
 

VII. DIVISION MANAGER REPORTS 
 

 Extension Services:  Andrew Cherbas stated that Summer Reading programs are complete.  They 
have met their goal and the will be completing statistics that will be available shortly.  He thanked Mary 
Nevin and Kyra Cardella for the Bookmobile with OSU athletes program.  OSU has reached out and 
wants to do it again next year. 
 
Technology – Andrew reported that the Library is making a change to new calendar and meeting room 
software.  The software will not appear much different for the public.  The changes will mainly be seen 
by Library staff.   
 
Jesse Adams will be updating and replacing all public computers, which will be done sometime this fall. 
 
Mary stated they are getting ready for fall programs.  Gardening programs have happened in 
Philomath.  Anne asked if there will be translation to Spanish for these programs.  Mary replied that not 
that she is aware of.  Alsea is going to add another Toddler Storytime.  Alsea has a community garden, 
so patrons come and check out books and leave with veggies too.  
 
Cheryl Maze asked about the email from the Benton County Museum Society about a book club.  Mary 
replied that yes, there is a book club and you can get free copies of the book here in Corvallis, in 
Philomath and at the Museum. 
 
 Technical Services:  Felicia reported that they launched the Launch Pads for kids today and one 
was checked out within the first hour. 
 
 Circulation:  Shaun Hearn reported that they have created a welcoming committee to look at how 
they can get patrons to come back and one idea was a welcoming email.  The committee developed an 
email and Jesse automated the process.  Carolyn added that from the research Orange Boy has done, 
they found that a large number of patrons got library cards and never used them.  Steve stated that the 
email is a really good idea and he likes how it follows the Strategic Plan as well. 
 
Shaun reported that Circulation is fully staffed again.  Two new employees, Marco Gonzalez and 
Charneé Rose, started yesterday in the Library Specialist II positions.  Both new employees are from 
outside the Library world. 
 

VIII. BOARD REPORTS 
 
Friends of the Library – Jacque reported that the next meeting will be September 19.  The first Random 
Review is next Wednesday at noon.  The Fall Festival Book Sale will be held at the Library during the 
Fall Festival.  
 



Library Advisory Board 
September 7, 2016 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Library Foundation – Steve reported that the Foundation met on August 29 and elected new officers.  
Jacque was elected President and Curtis Kiefer is the Vice-Chair.  They lost two members and added 
two new members.  There will be a lunch for donors only and Curtis is going to be the emcee.  They are 
really looking forward to the luncheon and honoring the Foundation donors. 
 
Their annual appeal will be sent out early to mid November.  This year will be a letter again.   
 
Steve added that the other thing Mark needs to understand is that how much support the Library has 
from all areas.  Jacque stated that she has made the point at all the 2040 Vision Plan meetings that the 
programming at the Library is paid for by the FOL and that the City should not depend on that always 
being there. 
 
Anne stated that 30,000 new people will likely move to the area in the next 30 years, due to climate 
change.  She stated that that’s not far off and we need to think about this in all our projections and 
planning.  Jacque stated that they discuss that and how will impact housing and infrastructure.  Steve 
stated that that rate of growth is manageable and can be easily planned for. 
 

IX. REVIEW CIRCULATION POLICY 
 
DISCUSS CHILDREN’S MATERIAL FINES 
Carolyn handed out a copy of the Circulation Policy and stated that there needs to be a few changes 
made in the policy.  The first change is to update the Mission Statement and the second thing is on 
page 3, about the collection agency.  The law has changed and no one is credit reported now.  At this 
point the collection agency will still attempt to collect fines for materials; they just can’t report it to credit.  
 
Staff has recently discussed the appendix, keeping in mind how many barriers are in people’s way in 
trying to use the Library.  We want the policies easy to understand, open to everyone, etc.  The biggest 
change they have discussed is the possibility to not charge fines on children’s materials.  Multnomah 
Library has recently done this.  Parents of young children tend to check out large quantities of materials 
and can end up with a pretty hefty bill, which causes some parents and children not to check out 
materials due to the possibility of fines.  Scott asked if you check out 20 items, the max fee you can be 
charged is $20.  Anne asked how much revenue is generated from fines.  Carolyn replied that this last 
year fines revenue was around $96,000.  They came up with a report of the last six months for 
children’s outstanding fines and that was around $6,112.  It would be about a 6% difference in revenue 
received if they choose not to charge fines for children’s materials.  Anne stated that if there is no fine, 
then there is no consequence for being late or lost.  Carolyn replied that the consequence is that you 
will be blocked from checking out any more materials and you will have to pay for lost items.  Carolyn 
stated that there are a lot of pros and cons to this possible change.  Shaun stated that this has been 
studied by other libraries and the results consistently show that fines don’t get materials back any 
faster.  Steve asked if there is any link to items not getting returned at all.  Shaun replied that he isn’t 
sure about that.  Steve stated that this would be the first time we would be doing this, not charging 
fines.  Carolyn stated the point is to encourage children to check out items.  Steve commented that he 
understands that it can be an obstacle for kids.  Carolyn added that they have never charged late fees 
on bookmobile items.  Paula asked if this means all children’s items, no matter who checks them out, or 
all children’s items only if it is just children’s cards.  Carolyn replied that we don’t want to try it by cards 
but limit it to the materials in general.   
 
Multnomah is doing it by age of patron, so it’s different there.  Carolyn stated that the difference with 
that is that children can check out any type of materials.  Anne asked about teachers and how this 
would affect them.  Carolyn replied that we are amping up our teacher program and taking materials to 
the schools, and you don’t want to have teachers run up fines.  If you figure you put books in a 
classroom of 30 kids, it’s going to be read 30 times.  You will still be charged for items after 4 weeks – 
replacement charges will go onto your account.  Jacque stated that there should be a sense of 
responsibly taught to someone no matter your age, but she sees the point of wanting all children to be 
able to use the library.   



Library Advisory Board 
September 7, 2016 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Mary reported that she has gotten feedback from some staff and if a mom with three kids pick up books 
and they have to be told they can’t check out books until they pay for items that were only five days 
late.  Paula asked what is staff recommending.  Carolyn stated that staff is recommending this change, 
but wants feedback first.  There will be people that will think we are being irresponsible and there is a 
down side of loss of small amount of revenue, but patrons are still responsible for the items.  Next 
month the Board should make a decision.   
 
Carolyn added they are considering changing the circulation period to having everything be three 
weeks, no matter what type of material.  For regular circulation, if you make the loan period shorter, 
circulation generally goes up because they get renewed or returned more often.  If you make your loan 
period longer, it may make circulation go down a little.   
 
Cheryl commented that she feels that the Lucky Day shelves are so sad and empty.  Paula replied that 
Monday morning is the best time to get something from there.  Felicia stated that 85% of the Lucky day 
collection is checked out regularly.   
 
Eric asked why we would change the circulation period to three weeks, why not four.  Carolyn replied 
that it is a compromise, as four weeks would really change the waitlist.  Books that are not new 
currently check out for four weeks.  Jennifer asked if Maker Kits are children’s or adult.  Felicia replied 
that they are adult, but the Steam Kits and Launch Pads will be children’s. 
 
Carolyn stated the other thing they discussed was renewals and raising the amount of times you can 
renew something.  Scott asked if items are not on hold or waitlist can you renew them.  Carolyn replied 
that yes, as long as they are not part of the Lucky Day collection or if there is no waiting list for the item. 
 
Another thing that needs added, is to the chart.  It needs to be updated to include items such as; Maker 
Kits, Steam Kits, etc.  Right now they are limited to one item out per card at a time, the fines are same 
as other materials, and they can only have one renewal.  The monitors are like DVD’s at this time.  
Paula asked if it is being mentioned to parents when they check out Maker Kits, etc. on how much it 
may cost if they are not returned or if they are broken.  Felicia stated there is a list of replacement 
costs, but they are being told when they check them out and the list is not currently included in the 
items.   
 
Carolyn stated that decisions will be made next month on the policy.  If anyone has any suggestions or 
additions, please let Carolyn know and/or bring them to next months’ meeting.  This is an administrative 
policy that only has to be approved by City Manager.  Mark is discussing streamlining the policy review 
process and if we even need them or not.  Shaun stated that if anyone has any questions about the 
policy and changes, he would be more than happy to answer any questions, just send him an email or 
give him a call. 
 

X. INFORMATION SHARING 
 
Jacque stated that she saw in a magazine that you can make pancakes on a 3d printer that you can 
eat. 
 
Eric stated that the Sip and Spell committee has met.  They have an agenda and are working on a word 
list. 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next meeting will be on October 5, 2016 at 7:30 pm, with the All Boards Potluck at 6:00 pm.  The 
meeting was adjourned at 9:00 pm. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

****************************** 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD REPORT 

 
October 5, 2016 

****************************** 
 
 
 

 
REPORTING PERIOD:  September 2016 
 
 A. Division Highlights 
 
   Administration 

 Public Works has been negotiating a new contract for custodial services with 
Garten.  

 Heather Maisel has accepted the position of Supervising Librarian.  She will start 
January 3.  She comes to us from the Castelgar Public Library in British Columbia.  

 New online calendar and meeting room software has been installed and Admin 
staff transferred all the prior bookings to the new system.  

 
   Access Services 

 Our two new Library Specialist II staff, Marco Gonzalez and Charneé Rose, began 
work on September 6.  Both come to us with a lot of customer service experience 
and both represented the Library at the booth at the OSU Beaver Fair. 

 The collection of pre-loaded tablet computers for children launched.  All were 
checked out almost immediately and continue to be popular. 

 Shasta Barnes is leading the Safety Committee in planning for the Library’s role in 
the Great Shake Out earthquake preparedness drill, which will take place at 10:20 
on 10/20.  We will be evacuating patrons from the building after the “shaking” stops.  
Due to the timing, the public use computers will not be available that day and 
storytime will not be held. 

 We are working with our primary materials vendor, Baker and Taylor, to migrate 
from the older software product for materials selection to the new version.  

 We continue to work with the Finance Department in refining cash handling and 
accounting procedures. 

 Felicia Uhden attended the annual OCLC Members’ Forum meeting held at 
Chemeketa Community College.  OCLC is also transitioning some functions from 
an older software and hardware platform to a newer one.  

 It’s been one year since we started offering our stamp card to new users and we’ve 
had a lot of excitement and positive feedback from patrons.  We have had 430 full 
stamp cards returned and exchanged for a small prize! 



Library Advisory Board Report 
September 30, 2016 
Reporting Period – September 2016 
Page 2 
 

 The DVD area showcased family movies for two weeks and then first seasons of 
TV shows this month.  Circ also had a home improvement/nesting display and a 
lifelong learning display. 
 

   Adult and Youth Services 
 OSU’s School of Writing, Literature, and Film invited the library to bring the book 

bike to a campus-wide reading of banned books on September 27th in celebration 
of Banned Books Week.  Community Library Specialist, Eric Sloss, brought a 
collection of banned and challenged books, images of banned and challenged 
book covers for sticker-making, and librarian-curated lists of some of the most 
acclaimed and popular banned and challenged books available at the library.  
Reference Librarian, Bonnie Brzozowski, also helped select kids and young adult 
banned and challenged library books that OSU staff, faculty and students could 
use to read from for the event. 

 Reference Librarian Lindy and Substitute Librarian Clare and Community Library 
Specialist Eric took the book bike to the Fall Festival on September 24th & 25th.  
They showed off the library’s impressive collections and interacted with about 
150 people between the hours of 10:00AM-12:00PM on each day. 

 Reference Librarian Bonnie Brzozowski finished up the book bike’s last month of 
bi-weekly Wednesday Farmers’ Market stops.  She signed people up for library 
cards, checked out many items, and received lots of positive feedback about the 
library and the book bike.  She will miss hearing vendors cheer “the book lady is 
here!” upon arriving to the Market.  From June-September, Bonnie and Lindy 
interacted with about 375 people at the Wednesday Farmers’ Markets. 

 On September 18th Reference Librarians Heidi Weisel and Charles Dunham 
presented a Car Free Storytime & Parade in celebration of Pedalpalooza: A Car 
Free Festival and International Car-Free Day (on 9/22).  Heidi entertained 20 
storytime-goers on a rainy morning with stories and songs.  The Sick Town 
Derby Dames and two Corvallis Police Department bicycle officers joined the 
group after storytime for a car-free parade to Riverfront Park for the start of 
Pedalpalooza.  Charles helped lead the parade with the library’s book bike. 
Charles and Heidi remained at Pedalpalooza to show off the library on two 
wheels and do helmet and bicycle decorating crafts with the kids; they interacted 
with about 40 people at the Festival. 

 Regular afterschool fall youth programming has started!  The READ Dogs 
program was held on September 1st and 15th; Beginning Readers Book Club met 
to discuss Gossie by Olivier Dunrea on September 14th; the Beginning Chapters 
Book Club discussed March of the Mini Beasts by Ada Hopper on September 
21st; Minecraft Monday had 30 in attendance on September 19th; and the all-ages 
Makers Club had 45 in attendance on September 27th.  The Makers Club event 
this month featured a vacuum chamber demonstration by Project X, a STEAM 
outreach program at Oregon State University.  This ongoing partnership with 
Project X will feature a new STEAM project at one Makers Club event a month.  
Next month a Read with the Beavs program will begin – offering children a 
chance to practice their reading skills as they read aloud to Oregon State 
University student athletes at the Corvallis library. 



Library Advisory Board Report 
September 30, 2016 
Reporting Period – September 2016 
Page 3 
 

 Early Literacy Coordinator, Peik-Kuan Lim, gave a presentation on choosing 
books and reading engagement for families attending the Little Beavers open 
house on September 28th.  The bookmobile visited Little Beavers and Peik-Kuan 
registered new library card users.  Peik-Kuan also led a library card sign-up drive 
by reaching out to all area preschools and childcare centers during the month of 
September. 

 Youth Services librarians Heidi Weisel and Kristin Starnes, along with courier 
Brian Bucolo, will be launching a pilot program in support of outreach to Corvallis 
public schools beginning in October.  This new program, CBCPL BookBox, will 
deliver a box of grade-appropriate library materials monthly to participating 
classrooms at Garfield, Lincoln, Mt. View, and Wilson Elementary schools.  The 
library hopes to expand the service to more classrooms and local schools as the 
year progresses. 

 Teen programming is kicking off again in October with Teen Advisors, Teen 
Writers, Teen Late Night, and a Teen Movie program.  Teen librarian Kristy 
Kemper Hodge will be expanding her middle school outreach book clubs to 
include programs at all local middle schools: Cheldelin, Franklin and Linus 
Pauling.  

 
   Extension Services 

 Monroe Community Library presented a “Learn to Spin” program, using recycled 
CDs to make drop spindles.  

 The Alsea Community Effort received a grant, written by Barb Trask, for new 
lighting in the Alsea Community Library.  A lighting consultant is assessing their 
lumen needs. 

 Philomath Librarian Ashley Folgate attended the Performers’ Showcase at the 
Salem Public Library to look for new Summer Program ideas. 

 Extensions Librarian Kyra Cardella with new Library Specialists Marco Gonzalez 
and Charneé Rose attended the Beaver Fair and made 80 new library cards for 
OSU students. 

 Jesse Adams, Library System Analyst, also attended the OSU Beaver Fair and 
partnered with OSU’s Project X.  Project X is an Oregon State Student organization 
dedicated to spreading STEAM Education through multimedia, web-based and live 
presentations.  A trough of oobleck, a non-Newtonian liquid, was set up for 
students to walk through. 
 

   Technology 
 Jesse Adams will be upgrading the Adult Services public computers October 20th.  
 We are exploring producing a science lesson video series in partnership with 

Project X from OSU.  The science videos would be featured as part of our monthly 
Maker programs. 





















Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF CORVALLIS 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 
 
 
 
POLICY AREA 1 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
 
AP 2002-1.08  Public Library Circulation Policy 
 
Adopted August 2002 
Revised December 2003 
Revised May 3, 2006 
Revised August 2007 
Revised August 2009 
Revised June 2010 
Revised September 2011 
Revised September 2012 
Revised September 2014 
 
 
1.08.010 Purpose 
 

The Library encourages everyone in the community to use and enjoy its facilities and 
services.  To protect each individual's access to information and services, the Library has 
established rules governing the circulation of Library materials.  These rules protect the 
borrowing privileges of Library patrons and preserve and protect the Library's materials. 

 
1.08.020 Eligibility for a Library Card 
 
1.08.021 Unless otherwise noted, "District" refers to the Benton County Library Service District, 

comprised of Benton County with the exception of the portion of North Albany within the 
Albany city limits. 

 
All borrowers must provide, at a minimum, proof of identity in the form of photo identification 
and their mailing address and meet the requirements set forth in one of the categories 
below, except as noted.  Each individual may have only one library account. 

 
All Library cardholders, including staff, volunteers, and board members, are subject to 
Library fines, fees, and borrowing rules.  The only exceptions are cards issued by the 
bookmobile, which does not carry cash and does not accept payments. 

 
See Appendix B for a Policy exception regarding cards issued by the Monroe Community 
Library. 

 
a. Residents of the District and Non-Resident Property Owners 

 
Any person who resides within the boundaries of the District will be issued, upon 
application, a library card at no cost. 
Adult applicants are required to provide proof of residence in the form of a driver's 
license, rent receipt, checkbook, utility bill, recently postmarked mail, etc.  Non-resident 



Administrative Policy 02-1.08 

Page 2 of 4 

property owners must show proof of property ownership, such as a property tax 
statement. 

 
Library cards for children, grades five and below, require the signature of a parent or 
guardian but no other form of identification.  Cards for those in sixth grade or above 
follow the same requirements as for adults except that photo identification and proof of 
address may not be required. 

 
Cards require updating periodically and may be deleted from the system if the card is 
inactive.  System access may be restricted if the card is not updated upon request. 

 
b. Non-Resident Free Cards 

 
Non-residents working in the District will be issued a free individual card upon showing 
proof of paid employment in the District. 

 
Non-residents attending school in the District will be issued a free individual card upon 
showing proof of school attendance. 

 
These cards will be valid for one year and may be updated annually upon showing proof 
of continued eligibility. 

 
c. Non-Resident Paid Cards 

 
Any individual or family living outside the District may purchase a library card. 

 
All members of a family residing at the same address may be issued a card for one fee. 

 
The fee for a non-resident card shall be set annually by Library staff in consultation with 
the Library Board.  The current fee is listed in Appendix A. 

 
A non-resident paid card will be valid for one year from date of issue. 

 
d. Temporary Residents 

 
Persons residing temporarily in the District may be issued a free card upon proof of 
address. 

 
A temporary card is valid for up to six months.  Abbreviated borrowing privileges may 
apply. 

 
e. Special Cards 

 
The Library reserves the right to issue special cards for which non-standard borrowing 
privileges apply. 

 
1.08.030 Responsibility 
 
1.08.031 Borrowers are financially responsible for all items checked out on their cards until those 

items are returned.  The responsibility for returning materials on time rests with the borrower 
and is not dependent upon receipt of a notice from the Library. 

 



Administrative Policy 02-1.08 

Page 3 of 4 

Fines are charged for materials returned to the Library after the due date on a per-day basis, 
whether or not the Library is open on those days.  The Library will always be open on the 
due date itself. 

 
If Library materials are damaged, the actual cost of repair plus a non-refundable processing 
fee will be charged the patron. 

 
Materials damaged beyond repair and lost materials will be billed at full replacement cost 
plus a non-refundable processing fee.  Exceptions to this practice are outlined in 
Appendix A. 

 
The Library may contract with a collection agency and/or take legal actionto resolve long-
overdue accounts.  In those cases, a non-refundable fee for collection costs will be added to 
the total bill.   

 
All fines, repair and processing fees, and collection costs are assessed for late or non-
returned items and are due even if the items are returned.  If needed, a payment schedule 
can be arranged so as not to cause any undue hardship on the borrower.  Refunds will be 
given for lost and paid items returned within six months (less the processing fee) if the 
borrower provides proof of payment. 

 
A schedule of current fines, fees, and charges is attached to this document as Appendix A. 

 
Borrowers are responsible for notifying the Library about any changes in address, telephone 
number, e-mail address, name, or other relevant contact information. 

 
Lost or stolen library cards must be reported immediately to the staff at the Circulation Desk 
at any Library location.  Upon notification, service to a lost card will be stopped; however, 
the borrower is responsible for all activity on the card until it is reported lost or stolen.  The 
Library reserves the right to deny future library cards in cases of theft, fraud, deception, or 
other illegal use of a library card. 

 
1.08.040 Circulation of Library Materials 
 
1.08.041 Limits on Borrowing and Loan Periods 
 

The Library reserves the right to limit the number of items checked out by any one person.  
Materials may be checked out from and returned to any branch in the Library system or the 
bookmobile. 

 
Loan periods are enumerated in Appendix A, which is attached to this document. 

 
Borrowing privileges and access to digital services are suspended for all unpaid accounts 
over a specified dollar amount. 

 
1.08.042 Renewals 
 

Unless Library materials have a waiting list or are designated as non-renewable, they may 
be renewed on-line, at the Library, or through the Library's automated 24-hour telephone 
renewal line. 



Administrative Policy 02-1.08 

Page 4 of 4 

 

1.08.043 Claims Returned 
 

When a patron claims that an item has been returned, the Library is searched for the item.  
If the item is found or brought to the desk for checkout, the record is cleared.  If the patron 
finds the item, the overdue fine is calculated from the due date to the return date, not to 
exceed the maximum fine amount.  Unresolved "claims returned" items are placed in a 
special status but remain on a patron's account, and an accumulation of five such items will 
result in the suspension of borrowing privileges until the problem is resolved. 

 
1.08.044 Reserves/Holds 
 

Holds may be placed on all circulating Library materials (except magazines) on-line, by 
telephone, or in person.  When the item is available, patrons are notified by e-mail or 
automated telephone system.  Items not picked up by the deadline will be given to the next 
person in the queue or returned to the shelves. 

 
1.08.045 Confidentiality of Library Records 
 

It is the policy of the Corvallis-Benton County Public Library to safeguard the privacy of its 
users, regardless of age, and to keep patron transactions confidential.  Administrative Policy 
2000-1.07, "Confidentiality of Library Records," describes this policy in detail. 

 
1.08.050 Review and Update 
 

The Library Director will prepare the Administrative Policy review every three years for City 
Manager Approval. 

 
Appendix A shall be reviewed annually for City Manager Approval. 

 
Review and concur: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________   ___________________________________ 
Nancy Brewer, City Manager Pro Tem      Date 
 



Administrative Policy 02-1.08 

 

Appendix A 
2015-2016 Loan Periods and Fees 

 

Type of Material  Circulation 
Period 

 Overdue Fine 
Maximum Fine/Item 

Adult new books, equipment, 
magazines, video games, and 
DVDs 

 3 weeks  $.15/day 
$5.00 Maximum fine/item 

Adult circulating books, audio 
books, and compact discs 

 3 weeks  $.15/day 
$5.00 Maximum fine/item 

Young adult magazines and 
DVDs 

 3 weeks  None 

Young adult circulating books, 
audio books, and compact 
discs 

 3 weeks  None 

Children's equipment, 
magazines and DVDs 

 3 weeks  None 

Children's circulating books, 
kits, audio books, and compact 
discs 

 3 weeks  None 

 
Note: A total over $10.00 due on any Library account will block that account.  Items may not be 

checked out until the balance is brought under $10.00.  Cardholders owing more than 
$300.00 will lose Library access to digital services until the debt is brought below 
$300.00. 

 
Other Charges or Fees: 
1. Non-resident household card:  $120.00 per year. 
2. Lost materials:  replacement cost plus non-refundable processing fee, except for magazines 

which have a total replacement cost of $5.00. 
3. Damaged materials:  cost to repair or replace plus non-refundable processing fee. 
4. Collection agency costs:  non-refundable and passed on to the borrower. 
 
Other Limits on Library Materials: 
1. Circulating items will renew for three weeks (unless there is a hold pending). Items in the Lucky 

Day collection may not be renewed. 
2. Most items may be renewed up to five times. DVDs, equipment, magazines and videogames 

may be renewed twice. Maker kits, STEAM kits, and tablet computers may be renewed once. 
No item may be renewed if there is a hold pending. 

3. Twenty-five (25) items may be on reserve on one card at any one time. 
4. Limits on borrowing: 

 DVDs:            10 items per collection type 
 Video games:          4 games 
 Equipment, maker kits, STEAM kits, tablet  

computers and Lucky Day collection:    1 per collection type 
 Other:            100 items per collection type 



Administrative Policy 02-1.08 

 

APPENDIX B 
Policy Exception for Cards Issued by the 

Monroe Community Library 
 
 
All provisions of this Policy apply to the Monroe Community Library, with the following exception: 
 
Cards issued by the Monroe Community Library are only available to: 
 
1. Residents living within the Monroe 1J School District; or 
2. Benton County residents living within the Harrisburg School District. 


	Library Board 2016.09.07 Agenda
	Library Board 2016.09.07 Minutes
	Library Board Report 2016-09
	articles
	AP 1.08 Public Library Circulation Policy revision

